F-6-70 1775-1885
Black's Mill District
Creagerstown vicinity

Private

The Black's Mill District 1is comprised of 5 principal buildings and two
mill sites located on Black's Mill Road with the focus of the district at
Hunting Creek where Black's Mill Road and Layman Road intersect. The district
represents an early industrial community that operated from the late eighteenth
century through the nineteenth century. Buildings in the district related to
the milling industry as residences or nearby farms. Although the industrial
structures are no 1longer extant, the remaining buildings give evidence of a
former community centered around Hunting Creek and the mills. By the
nineteenth century, it had developed into a crossroads location on the route to
larger villages 1ike Creagerstown and Thurmont. Architecturally, the surviving
resources were constructed from the Jlate eighteenth century to the mid-
nineteenth century. The majority of the buildings are of brick construction
with a sophisticated level of design and plan. The other buildings are of log

construction typical of the region.
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Black's Mill District
Creagerstown vicinity
Frederick County

HISTORIC CONTEXT

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

Chronological/Development Period:
Rural Agrarian Intensification 1680-1815
Agricultural-Industrial Transition 1815-1870
Industrial/Urban Dominance 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes:
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Community Planning
Agriculture
Economic (Commercial & Industrial)

Resource Type:
Category: Buildings

Historic Environment: Rural
Historic Function and Use:

Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Domestic/secondary structure/shed

Agriculture/Subsistence/agricultural outbuilding/barn,
corn crib,sheds
Industrial/Processing/Extraction/manufacturing facility/
mill ruins

Known Design Source: None




Survey No. F-6§-70

MARYLAND INVENTORY CF

Y
. . - Magi No.
2T

Maryland Historical Trust  HISTORIC PROPERTIES
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _ yes _ no
1 . Name {indicate preferred name)
historic Black's Mill District
and/or common
2. Location
street & number 7800 block, 8000 block Black's Mill Road —__ not for publication
city, town  Creagerstown _X_vicinity of congressional district 6th
state Maryland county Frederick
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
_X_ district — public X__ occupied X__ agriculture —___ museum
___ building(s) _X_ private ___ unoccupied ____ commercial ____ park
— structure _ both ____work in progress __ educational R private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible —__entertainment —_religious
- __ object —___in process X__ yes: restricted —___government —__ scientific

— being considered ____ yes: unrestricted ____ industrial ____transportation

_x not applicable __no ____ military ___other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Multiple owners - see attachment

street & number telephone no.:

clty, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio
city, town Frederick state Md. 21701

6. Representation in Existing #istorical surveys

title Anthony James Survey, Paul Brinkman Survey
1974 1969

date

— federal ___state __ county X local

pository for survey records Frederick County Dept. of Planning & Zoning

city, town Frederick state Md. 21701




7. Description Survey No.  F-6-70
Condition Check one Check one

— excellent ___ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X_ original site

— good —___ruins X ailtered — moved date of move

_X__ tair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource

various elements as it exists today.

Contributing Resource Count: 5

(Typed on separate sheet)

and its



8. Significance Survey No. F-6-70

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____conservation — law ____science

~ _1500-1599 _X__ agriculture ____economics —_literature —_ sculpture

__1600-1699 _x__ architecture — education — mllitary —___social/

—X 1700-1799 ____ art —_ engineering — muslc humanitarian

— X 1800-1899 _X commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater

— 1900~ —_ communications —X__ industry — politics/government ____ transportation
____invention —___ other (speclfy)

Specific dates Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: x A _ B xC D
and/or
Applicable Exception: __ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state x local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

(Typed on separate sheet)



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. F-6-70

Atlas of Frederick County, Maryland, C.0. Titus and Co., Philadelphia, 1873.

Land Deeds, Frederick County Courthouse, Frederick, Maryland.

Map of Frederick County, Maryland, Isaac Bond, Baltimore, 1858.

A Map of Frederick and Washington Counties, Maryland, Charles Varle, Philadelphia, 1808.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated propert
Quadrangle name __Catoctin Furnace MD Quadrangle Quadrangle scale 1: 24000

UTM References Jo NOT complete UTM references
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Tax Map 32

Parcels 2, 5, 8, 9, 35
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Mary Kendall Shipe, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. date  June, 1991

street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone 696-2958

Frederick state Md. 21701

city or town

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438
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Black's Mill District
Frederick County

4.1 Owner of Property:

Paul D. Schartz
8040 Black's Mill Road
Thurmont, Maryland 21788

Jesse R. Wiles
12409 Layman Road
Thurmont, Maryland 21788

Herman B. Brust, Jr.
5517 Boot Jack Drive
Frederick, Maryland 21701

G. Eugene Anderson
7815 Black's Mill Road
Thurmont, Maryland 21788

Maurice C. King
7610 Black's Mill Road
Thurmont, Maryland 21788

Survey No. F-6-70

Ward House

Castle House

Herman Brust House

Anderson House

Zimmerman House



Black's Mill District Survey No. F-6-70
Frederick County

7.1 Description:

The Black's Mill District is comprised of 5 principal buildings and two
mill sites located on Black's Mill Road with the focus of the district at
Hunting Creek where Black's Mill Road and Layman Road intersect. The district
developed by the 1late 1700s as a result of the milling industry (at least two
grist mills) 1located on the creek. The surviving buildings relate to the
original focus of the area as residences for mill owners and workers or as
nearby farms associated with the mills.

Three buildings are 1located 1in close proximity to the mill sites on the
south side of Hunting Creek. One building is on the north side of Hunting
Creek. Another building is located approximately 1/2 miles to the west of the
mill aligned with a tributary of the creek, Little Hunting Creek.

A1l of the buildings are two stories in height. Three of the buildings
are of brick construction; the remaining two are of frame and 1log
construction. Two buildings have one story stone wings. The buildings show a
range of design influences including Georgian and Federal period elements and
vernacular log techniques.

Today, the district is residential and agricultural. During the periods
of significance for the district, it experienced greater activity through the
production of two mills which created a commercial center. Although the mills
are no longer standing, the remaining resources are representative elements of
a former industrial community.

The Castle House, 7816 Black's Mill Road, is a two story brick building
with the principal facade facing east. It is located several yards to the west
of Hunting Creek and was probably associated with one of the two grist mills on
the creek. Constructed circa 1780, the house has flemish bond brickwork with
queen closers and a watertable on the east and south elevations. Al1 other
elevations have 3.1 common bond. It rests on a stone foundation. The gable
roof of standing seam tin has two interior end stuccoed chimneys. A wooden
molded cornice extends around the building. A three string beltcourse runs
across the north and east elevations; the central row is composed of glazed
headers. A one story stone and brick wing extends from the south elevation of
the main block: it was constructed in two sections and is 3 bays wide. It has a
gable roof of standing seam tin and a boxed cornice. Glazed headers are
randomly placed. Two interior chimneys, end and center, are located in the
roofline.

The principal elevation has 4 bay openings with one door and three
windows. The double, panelled door has a wooden lintel with a keystone that
ressembles stone. Windows are 6/6 1ights with flat wooden lintels. A diamond

pattern of glazed headers 1is placed underneath the cornice. The south
elevation has 2 symmetrical bays with 6/6 windows that have flat wooden
lintels. It also has diamond patterns with glazed headers. The north

elevation has two bays located towards the east wall. Windows are 6/6 and 2/2
replacements. There is evidence of early segmental arches above the windows.
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7.2 Description (Continued)

A large arch is also located in the basement level. The elevation has random
glazed headers. The west elevation has 6/6 windows on the second floor; the
rear wing extends from the first floor. The main facade of the wing faces
south with three openings. Windows throughout are 1/1 replacements. The north
elevation has three openings with an off-center door. The west gable end is
partly stone, partly brick.

Agricultural outbuildings date from the late nineteenth century and
include a drive-through corncrib, a bank barn with a ceramic tile silo and a
barrel-roofed concrete block barn with an attached concrete block dairy.

The Herman Brust House, 7911 Black's Mill Road, dates from 1794. It was
originally a miller's house associated with a grist mill several feet to the
north (stone remains of this mill are evident). It is a 2 story running bond
brick house on a stone foundation with a gable roof of standing seam tin. It
has two interior end brick chimneys and a shallow brick cornice. A 2 story
brick wing extends from the south elevation of the main block: it is reputed to
be log encased in brick.

The principal elevation, facing north, has 4 bays with one off center
door. 6/6 windows on the first floor have jack arches; on the second floor,
the windows have flat wooden 1lintels. The west and east elevations of the
main block are 2 bays wide with 6/6 windows with jack arches and 4/4 attic
windows. The south elevation is covered by the rear ell. The main facade of
the ell faces east with the gable roof running north to south. A two story
frame attachment extends from the wing on the east elevation; it is sheathed in
german siding and has a flat roof. It has 6/6 ribbons of windows on the first
floor and 6/6 windows on the second floor. The west elevation has 2
symmetrical bays with 6/6 windows. The south gable end has one 4 light fixed
window in the attic.

One small outbuilding is located to the south of the house. It is a one
story, frame building with vertical siding and a gable roof of standing seam
tin.

The Anderson House, 7815 Black's Mill Road, is a 2 story log and frame
house (circa 1860) located several yards to the west of the Herman Brust
House. It 1is sheathed 1in asbestos tile shingles and rests on a stone
foundation. The corrugated tin gable roof has two interior end brick
chimneys. A two story frame rear ell extends from the south elevation with a
corrugated tin gable roof.

The principal facade faces north and has 3 bays. It has 6/6 windows and a
central door. The east elevation has 2 6/6 windows on the second floor and 2 6
light attic windows. The west elevation has 1 bay opening. The rear wing has
a recessed double porch on the east elevation. The south gable end is sheathed
in aluminum and has no openings. The west elevation is 2 bays wide.
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7.3 Description (Continued)

Outbuildings with the property include two small vertical sided sheds
and a bank barn with a ceramic tile silo.

The Ward House, 8040 Black's Mill Road, dates from the early 1800s and
is located on the east side of Hunting Creek, approximately 1/8 miles from the
focus of the district. It is a 2 story brick house with a gable roof of
asphalt shingles and rests on a stone foundation. Brickwork is flemish bond on
the main (south) facade; 5:1 common bond on the other elevations. It has two
interior end brick chimneys and a corbelled brick cornice. The exterior of
the house reveals an interior side hall plan. A 2 story brick rear wing
extends from the north elevation with a gable roof of asphalt shingling and a
corbelled brick cornice. It has an interior end brick chimney and a new center
brick chimney.

The principal elevation, facing south, has 3 bays with a side door
opening and 6/6 windows with gauged brick arches. The door has 6 panels, a 4
light transom and recessed side panels. The east gable end has 2 attic windows
with Jjack arches and no other openings; the west gable end has 2 symmetrical
bays with 6/6 windows and 2 attic windows (all windows have jack arches). The
rear ell extends from the north elevation.

The main facade of the rear ell faces east; it has a recessed open
double porch, 2 bays wide. The remaining two bays are symmetrical with a door
and window on the first floor and 2 windows on the second. Jack arches are
above all the openings. The west elevation is 2 bays wide with 6/6 windows and
1/1 replacements. The north elevation has no openings except for 2 attic
windows.

Surviving outbuildings include a german-sided chicken coop and a ceramic
tile silo. There are also remains of a barn.

The Zimmerman Farm, 7610 Black's Mill Road, is located approximately 1/2
mile from the mill sites. A mill race extending from Little Hunting Creek,
several yards from the farm, connected it to milling operations nearby. Built
circa 1850, it is a 2 story log house sheathed in vinyl siding with a gable
roof of standing seam tin. It also has two interior end brick chimneys. A one
story, rectangular wing 1is attached to the west and south elevations; it is
comprised of stone, brick and frame sections and dates from the early 1800s.

The main facade, facing east, has 5 bay openings with 1/1 replacement
windows. A one story full facade open porch has turned columns and a concrete
base. The south elevation has two symmetrical bays and a basement door. The
one story wing covers the bay closest to the west wall. The north elevation
also has two symmetrical bays. The front porch wraps around to include part of
this elevation. The west elevation is covered by the wing.

The main elevation of the one story wing faces east and is exposed from
deterioration. This elevation shows two rooms built in different sections: the
section to the south is of stone; the one closest to the house is frame covered
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7.4 Description (Continued)

in weatherboard. A center brick chimney connects the two rooms with a
fireplace opening into the frame section. Two other rooms are attached to the
frame section and the rear (west) of the main block. The next section is
stone; the last section is one bay wide and is of brick construction. The west
elevation of the main house section has a catslide roofline and 6/6 windows:
there 1is board and batten siding on the frame section, stone and brick on the
others. The interior of this wing shows the progression of the rooms. There
is beaded wallboard, a boxed staircase and rubble nogging.

Outbuildings 1include three german-sided sheds and a gambrel roofed
concrete block dairy barn dating from the early twentieth century.
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8.1 Significance:

The Black's Mill District represents an early industrial community that
operated from the late eighteenth century through the nineteenth century.
Buildings 1in the district related to the milling industry as residences or
nearby farms. Although the 1industrial structures are no longer extant, the
remaining buildings give evidence of a former community centered around Hunting
Creek and the mills. By the nineteenth century, it had developed into a
crossroads location on the route to 1larger villages 1ike Creagerstown and
Thurmont. Architecturally, the surviving resources were constructed from the
late eighteenth century to the wmid-nineteenth century. The majority of the
buildings are of brick construction with a sophisticated level of design and
plan. The other buildings are of log construction typical of the region.

Many mill communities probably flourished in Frederick County during the
eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. Today, few of those communities have
survived. One such community, Kinna's Mill District (F-6-50), has an intact
assemblage of eighteenth and nineteenth century resources including the
original mill structure which exemplifies the development of a mill community
in the county. By comparison, Black's Mill District shows a more limited
period of development and bhas lost its industrial structures. However,
remaining buildings in the district clearly demonstrate the significance of the
comaunity as an important focal point of the region from circa 1775-1885.

The Creagerstown area was the earliest region settled in Frederick County
in the early 1700s. Most of the settlers were of German descent. The
establishment of milling operations in coordination with farming activities
probably began by the mid-eighteenth century. By 1808, the Varles Map
indicates several mills 1located in the region including two grist mills on
Hunting Creek in the Black's Mill District. The Castle House, the Herman Brust
House and the Zimmerman Farm had been constructed by this time. In 1858, a
merchant and saw mill was operated by Samuel Diffendall; the water rights had
been transferred to him in 1856 (Land deed, E.S. 9, 67). A merchant and saw
mill was a commercial and industrial enterprise where cash was paid for crops
suggesting a money economy. The presence of that type of mill indicated
economic prosperity in the immediate area. (Interview with John McGrain,
Maryland mill historian, 4/91) By 1873, a merchant grist mill and a saw mill
were still functioning. The district had developed to include all of its
present day buildings by this period and experienced prosperity through its
industrial and agricultural pursuits.

The 1level of architectural design also suggests that the district
prospered from the late eighteenth century. Two brick buildings, in
particular, show evidence of high style architectural influence. The Castle
House demonstrates features of the Georgian and Federal periods with a
beltcourse, glazed header patterns, a watertable, flemish bond brickwork and
elegant entrance. The Ward House also has elements of the Federal style
particularly noted in the side hall plan, the flemish bond brickwork and the
gauged brick arched lintels.
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8.2 Significance (Continued)

Later buildings 1in the district reflect vernacular, regional architecture
seen 1in the log dwellings and the main brick section in the Herman Brust House
with the 4 bay facade.

A number of families were associated with the district. The earliest
known owner of the Castle House was James Johnson who sold "buildings and water
courses® 1in 1817 to James Walker (Land deeds). The property was owned by the
Zimmermans in the early to mid 1800s. It became known as "Highland Farm" and
had a 265 acre tract. Daniel Castle purchased the property in 1856 and it
remained in the Castle family until 1943. The Herman Brust House was a
miller's house. In 1858, F.R. Wilson resided there; by 1873, George W. Shaw
was the owner. Shaw sold the property in 1880 to the Black family (present day
name of the area). The Blacks owned at least one of the mills and the house
until 1914 when the Mayn family purchased it. The Zimmermans were associated
with the district by the early 1800s. In 1858, M. Zimmerman owned the
Zimmerman Farm. By 1873, he also owned the Anderson House and another building
no longer standing in the district.

Remains of a mill and at least one mill site are significant aspects of
the district. The location of the mill races are evident near Hunting Creek
and near the Zimmerman Farm at Little Hunting Creek.

Further analysis and documentary research should be undertaken in this
district as it represents a eighteenth century milling community.
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